LARIMORE PUBLIC SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 44 LARIMORE, NORTH DAKOTA

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

TABLE OF CONTENTS

P	age
ROSTER OF SCHOOL OFFICIALS	1
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	2
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)	5
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
Statement of Net Position	12
Statement of Activities	13
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds	14
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position	15
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds	16
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	17
Statement of Net Position - Fiduciary Fund	18
Notes to the Financial Statements	19
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Budgetary Comparison Schedule of the General Fund	42
Note to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule	43
Schedule of District's Contributions to the TFFR and NDPERS Pension Plans	44
Schedule of District's Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability	45
Note to the Required Supplementary Information	46
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
Balance Sheet – Non-Major Governmental Funds	47
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Non-Major Governmental Funds	48
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF	
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS	49
Schedule of Findings and Responses	51

ROSTER OF SCHOOL OFFICIALS JUNE 30, 2016

Joe Reinhold President
Henry Borysewicz Vice President
Mitch McCoy Board Member
Meg Farrell Board Member
Todd Yahna Board Member
Roger Abbe Superintendent

Business Manager

Shauna Sather



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Education Larimore Public School District No. 44 Larimore, North Dakota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Larimore Public School District No. 44, which comprise the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Larimore Public School District No. 44, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of District's Contributions to the TFFR and NDPERS Pension Plans, and schedule of District's proportionate share of net pension liability as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements. The roster of school officials and the combining non-major fund statements, listed in the table of contents as supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining non-major fund statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining non-major fund statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The roster of school officials on page 1 has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated August 26, 2016 on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Frady Martz

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C. GRAND FORKS, NORTH DAKOTA

August 26, 2016

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

The discussion and analysis of Larimore Public School District's financial performance provides an overall review of the District's financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2016. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District's financial performance as a whole. Readers should also review the basic financial statements and related notes to enhance their understanding of the District's financial performance.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for the 2015-2016 fiscal years are as follows:

- Net position of the District decreased \$82,051 over the prior year as a result of the current year's operations.
- Governmental net position totaled \$(750,556).
- Total revenues from all sources were \$5,455,002.
- Total expenses were \$5,537,053.
- The District's general fund had \$5,169,983 in total revenues and \$5,370,596 in expenditures. Overall, the general fund balance decreased by \$167,046 for the year ended June 30, 2016, compared to an increase of \$44,895 in the previous year.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and related footnotes. These statements are organized so the reader can understand Larimore Public School District No. 44 as a financial whole. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the whole District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District's finances and a longer-term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term, as well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements also look at the District's most significant funds with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column.

Reporting the School District as a Whole

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the District to provide programs and activities, the view of the District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the question, "How did the District do financially during the year ended June 30, 2016?" The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities answers this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in that position. This change in net position is important because it tells the reader that, for the District as a whole, the financial position of the District has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors, some financial, and some not. Non-financial factors include the District's property tax base, current property tax laws in North Dakota, facility condition, required educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the District reports governmental activities. Governmental activities are the activities where most of the District's programs and services are reported including, but not limited to, instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the District's major funds. The District uses many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. However, these fund financial statements focus on the District's most significant funds. The District's major governmental funds are the General Fund and Building Fund. The District's non-major governmental funds are Special Reserves and Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future periods. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the District's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Financial Analysis of the District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole.

Table 1 provides a summary of the District's net position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015.

As indicated in the financial highlights, the District's net position decreased by \$82,051. Long term liabilities increased by \$1,599,140 for the year ended June 30, 2016 due to a new debt issuance. Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District's financial position.

The District's net position of \$(750,556) is segregated into three separate categories. Net investment in capital assets represents 298% of the District's entire net position. It should be noted that these assets are not available for future spending. Restricted net position represents 35% of the District's net position. Restricted net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they must be spent. The remaining unrestricted net position represents (433)% of the District's net position. The unrestricted net position is available to meet the District's ongoing obligations.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

	2016	2015
Table 1		
Assets		
Current Assets	\$ 2,694,635	\$ 1,606,697
Capital Assets (Net of Related Debt) Total Assets	<u>2,503,376</u> 5,198,011	2,530,125 4,136,822
, otal / 166516		.,
Deferred Outflows of Resources Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Plan	853,098	335,531
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources	853,098	335,531
Liabilitiaa		
Liabilities Current Liabilities	315,773	251,470
Long-Term Liabilities	5,990,558	4,391,418
Total Liabilities	6,306,331	4,642,888
Deferred Inflows of Resources		
Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Plan	495,334	497,970
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources	495,334	497,970
Net Position		
Net Investment in Capital Assets	2,237,877	2,157,125
Restricted	263,756	321,786
Unrestricted	(3,252,189)	(3,147,416)
Total Net Position	\$ (750,556)	\$ (668,505)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Table 2 shows the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.

	2016	2015
Table 2		
Revenues		
Program Revenues		
Charges for Services	\$ 220,731	\$ 204,605
Operating Grants and Contributions	473,224	528,206
General Revenues		
Taxes	1,418,991	1,403,663
State Aid	3,318,773	3,245,687
Investment Earnings (Losses)	23,283	(3,546)
Total Revenues	5,455,002	5,378,615
Expenses		
Business Support Services	313,044	238,436
Instructional Support Services	94,585	87,889
Administration	146,547	119,697
Operations and Maintenance	661,629	551,867
Transportation	234,562	270,829
Regular Instruction	2,603,534	2,309,469
Special Education	773,302	841,132
Vocational Education	192,841	178,093
Extra-Curricular Activities	248,805	236,131
Food Services	241,759	222,823
Enterprise Services	-	15,000
Interest and Fees on Long-Term Debt	26,445	10,883
Total Expenses	5,537,053	5,082,249
Change in Net Position	(82,051)	296,366
Net Position - Beginning	(668,505)	3,333,793
GASB 68 & 71 Adjustment		(4,298,664)
Net Position - Beginning as Restated	(668,505)	(964,871)
Net Position - Ending	\$ (750,556)	\$ (668,505)

Property taxes constituted 26%, state aid 61%, operating grants and contributions 9%, and charges for services made up 4% of the total revenues of governmental activities of the District for fiscal year 2016.

Regular instruction comprised 47% of district expenses.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. That is, it identifies the cost of these services supported by tax revenue and other unrestricted revenues.

Table 3	Total Cost for Year Ended 6/30/2016				Total Cost for Year Ended 6/30/2015		Υ	et Cost for ear Ended 5/30/2015
Business Support Services	\$	313,044	\$	(313,044)	\$	238,436	\$	(238,436)
Instructional Support Services		94,585		(94,585)		87,889		(87,889)
Administration		146,547		(146,547)		119,697		(119,697)
Operations and Maintenance		661,629		(661,629)		551,867		(551,867)
Transportation		234,562		(62,931)		270,829		(103,322)
Regular Instruction		2,603,534		(2,453,615)		2,309,469		(2,231,064)
Special Education		773,302		(680,909)		841,132		(647,571)
Vocational Education		192,841		(166,780)		178,093		(140,849)
Extra-Curricular Activities		248,805		(219,879)		236,131		(198,011)
Food Services		241,759		(16,734)		222,823		(4,849)
Enterprise Services		-		-		15,000		(15,000)
Interest and Fees on Debt		26,445		(26,445)		10,883		(10,883)
Total Expenses	\$	5,537,053	\$	(4,843,098)	\$	5,082,249	\$	(4,349,438)

Business support services and administration include expenses associated with administrative and financial supervision of the District.

Instructional support services include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and process of teaching to pupils.

Operation and maintenance of plant activities involve maintaining the school grounds, buildings, and equipment in an effective working condition.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as well as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction between teacher and pupil.

Special education includes costs that support the education of students with other needs.

Vocational education includes expenditures that support the teaching of vocational type instruction.

Extracurricular activities include expenses related to student activities provided by the District, which are designed to provide opportunities for pupils to participate in school events, public events, or a combination of these for the purposes of motivation, enjoyment and skill improvement.

Food Services include expenses directly dealing with providing breakfast and lunch service to students and staff of the District.

Other Programs and Services include expenditures such as counseling and guidance salaries, food services, etc.

Interest on long-term debt involves the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other related charges to debt of the District.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Financial Analysis of the District's Governmental Funds

The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on the near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of available resources. Unassigned fund balance generally may be used as a measure of the District's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. These funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The District's governmental funds had total revenues and other financing sources of \$5,443,239 and \$5,379,725 and expenditures of \$5,684,537 and \$5,380,628 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the unassigned fund balance of the District's general fund was \$977,178 and \$1,144,224 and total fund balance for all the District's governmental funds were \$2,532,712 and \$1,453,511, respectively.

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

Over the course of the year, the District did not revise the annual operating budget.

Actual revenues were \$18,125 higher than expected and actual expenditures were \$103,095 over budget in the general fund due to higher property tax revenues than expected and salaries expense and Upper Valley special education fees were higher than expected. The District uses a conservative approach to budgeting by estimating revenues low.

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2016 and 2015, the District had \$2,503,376 and \$2,530,125, respectively, invested in capital assets. Table 4 shows balances as of June 30, 2016 and 2015. Please see Note 4 for detailed information.

Table 4

	 2016	2015		
Land	\$ 847,707	\$	847,707	
Buildings	697,715		715,547	
Equipment	957,954		966,871	
Totals	\$ 2,503,376	\$	2,530,125	

Debt Administration:

As of June 30, 2016, the District had \$6,202,637 in outstanding debt. The District increased its overall debt by \$1,663,719 from June 30, 2015. See below and Note 5 for description of the District's debt.

Table 5	Balance 7/1/2015 As Restated		Issued		Amount Retired uring Year	Jui	Balance ne 30, 2016
Limited Tax School Building Bonds of 2011	\$ 148,000	\$	-	\$	73,000	\$	75,000
Limited Tax School Building Bonds of 2012	225,000		-		55,000		170,000
School Building Bonds of 2016	-		1,300,000		-		1,300,000
Bond Premium	-		20,499		-		20,499
Early Retirement	39,000		22,000		19,500		41,500
Compensated Absences	14,307		3,122		-		17,429
Net Pension Liability	 4,112,611		1,787,841		1,322,243		4,578,209
	\$ 4,538,918	\$	3,133,462	\$	1,469,743	\$	6,202,637

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) - CONTINUED FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

For the Future:

The District has made a major change in its finances by switching to a high-deductible plan for group insurance. This has helped to offset the cost of providing insurance to additional classified staff. Renovations at the Elementary School are being paid for through bonds that will be paid by a portion of the District's Building Fund. Bond payments will use 6-7 mills for up to 20 years. Current Sinking and Interest Fund bonds will be paid off by 2018. Staffing remains to be a major portion of the District's expenses. This will be impacted by going to a full-time superintendent for the 2017-18 school year. The District is maintaining a healthy year-end balance and will work toward a balanced budget to the greatest extent possible.

Contacting the District's Financial Management:

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors and creditors with a general overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. You may request a copy of this report by contacting Shauna Sather, Business Manager, Larimore Public School District, P.O. Box 769, 300 Booth Avenue, Larimore, ND 58251-0769, or email at shauna.sather@k12.nd.us

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS	
Cash and Investments	\$ 2,576,470
Federal Receivables	46,278
Property Taxes Receivable	 71,887
Total Current Assets	 2,694,635
Capital Acceta	
Capital Assets Land	847,707
Buildings	1,688,260
Equipment	2,283,988
Less Accumulated Depreciation	(2,316,579)
Total Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation	2,503,376
TOTAL ASSETS	 5,198,011
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES	
Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan - TFFR	760,679
Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan - NDPERS	92,419
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES	853,098
LIABILITIES Payrell Deductions	00.000
Payroll Deductions	98,692 5,002
Interest Payable Bonds Payable Due Within One Year	186,079
Early Retirement Due Within One Year	26,000
Total Current Liabilities	 315,773
Total Guiterit Liabilities	010,770
Long-Term Liabilities	
Bonds Payable (Net of Current Maturities)	1,379,420
Early Retirement Payable (Net of Current Maturities)	15,500
Compensated Absences	17,429
Net Pension Liability	 4,578,209
Total Non-Current Liabilities	 5,990,558
TOTAL LIABILITIES	6,306,331
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES	440.000
Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan - TFFR	443,996
Cost Sharing Defined Benefit Pension Plan - NDPERS TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES	 51,338
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES	495,334
NET POSITION	
Net Investment in Capital Assets	2,237,877
Restricted for Debt Service	149,978
Restricted for Special Reserve	32,283
Restricted for Building Projects	81,495
Unrestricted	 (3,252,189)
TOTAL NET POSITION	\$ (750,556)
	 . ,

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Functions/Programs	Expenses			Charges for Services		perating ants and atributions	pense) Revenue Phanges in Net Position
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES		хропосс				Terribation is	1 00111011
Business Support Services	\$	313,044	\$	-	\$	_	\$ (313,044)
Instructional Support Services		94,585		-		-	(94,585)
Administration		146,547		-		-	(146,547)
Operations and Maintenance		661,629		-		-	(661,629)
Transportation		234,562		-		171,631	(62,931)
Regular Instruction		2,603,534		66,420		83,499	(2,453,615)
Special Education		773,302		-		92,393	(680,909)
Vocational Education		192,841		-		26,061	(166,780)
Extra-Curricular Activities		248,805		28,926		-	(219,879)
Food Services		241,759		125,385		99,640	(16,734)
Enterprise Services		-		-		-	-
Interest and Fees on Long-Term Debt		26,445					 (26,445)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES	\$	5,537,053	\$	220,731	\$	473,224	(4,843,098)
	GEN	NERAL REVE	NUES				
	Р	roperty Taxes	, Levie	d for General	Purpos	es	1,145,924
	Р	roperty Taxes	, Levie	d for Debt Se	rvice		103,534
	Р	roperty Taxes	, Levie	d for Special	Reserve	e	36,495
		roperty Taxes			Projects		133,038
		ids and Paym					3,318,773
	U	nrestricted Inv	estme/	nt Earnings (I	Losses)		 23,283
	ТОТ	AL GENERA	L REVI	ENUES			 4,761,047
	Cha	nge in Net Po	sition				(82,051)
	Net	Position - Beg	jinning				 (668,505)
	Net	Position - Enc	ling				\$ (750,556)

See the Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

			Building Fund		Other Non-Major Governmental Funds		Total Governmental Funds	
ASSETS Cash and Investments Federal Receivables Property Taxes Receivable	\$	1,022,894 46,278 56,705	\$	1,374,445 - 7,050	\$	179,131 - 8,132	\$	2,576,470 46,278 71,887
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	1,125,877	\$	1,381,495	\$	187,263	\$	2,694,635
LIABILITIES Payroll Deductions	\$	98,692	\$	<u>-</u> _	\$		\$	98,692
TOTAL LIABILITIES		98,692				-		98,692
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES Unavailable Revenue - Delinquent Taxes		50,007		6,307		6,917		63,231
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES		50,007		6,307		6,917		63,231
FUND BALANCES Restricted for Debt Service Restricted for Special Reserve Restricted for Building Projects Unassigned		- - - 977,178		- - 1,375,188 <u>-</u>		149,991 30,355 - -		149,991 30,355 1,375,188 977,178
TOTAL FUND BALANCES		977,178		1,375,188		180,346		2,532,712
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES	\$	1,125,877	\$	1,381,495	\$	187,263	\$	2,694,635

See the Accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Total fund balances - governmental funds	\$ 2,532,712
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:	
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore, are not reported as net assets in government funds: Cost of capital assets Less: accumulated depreciation \$ 4,819,955 (2,316,579)	
Net	2,503,376
Net deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources relating to the cost sharing of defined benefit plans in the governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as deferred outflows/(inflows) of resources in the governmental funds.	357,764
Property taxes receivable will be collected during the year, but are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and therefore, are deferred in the funds.	63,231
Bond premiums that are amortized over the life of the debt issue	(20,499)
Long-term liabilities, including special assessments, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore, are not recorded as liabilities in the governmental funds.	
Bonds Payable Compensated Absences Early Retirement Net Pension Liability	(1,545,000) (17,429) (41,500) (4,578,209)
Interest payable is not due and payable in the current period and therefore is not reported as a liability in the governmental fund.	 (5,002)
Net Position - Governmental Activities	\$ (750,556)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

	General Building Fund Fund		Other Non-Major Governmental Funds	Total Governmental Funds
REVENUES Local Property Tax Levies Other Local and County Revenues Revenue From State Sources Revenue From Federal Sources Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Investments Interest	\$ 1,134,161 220,732 3,516,465 275,531 7,907 15,187	\$ 133,038 - - - - 89	\$ 140,029 - - - - 100	\$ 1,407,228 220,732 3,516,465 275,531 7,907 15,376
TOTAL REVENUES EXPENDITURES	5,169,983	133,127	140,129	5,443,239
Current: Business Support Services Instructional Support Services Administration Operations and Maintenance Transportation Regular Instruction Special Education Vocational Education Extra-Curricular Activities Food Services Capital Outlay: Debt Service: Principal Retirement Interest and Fees on Long-Term Debt	313,044 94,585 146,547 499,383 185,633 2,513,407 773,302 192,841 248,805 241,759 161,290	- - 161,796 - - - - - - - 17,526	- - 450 - - - - - - 128,000 6,169	313,044 94,585 146,547 661,629 185,633 2,513,407 773,302 192,841 248,805 241,759 161,290 128,000 23,695
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	5,370,596	179,322	134,619	5,684,537
Excess (deficiency) of Revenues over (under) Expenditures	(200,613)	(46,195)	5,510	(241,298)
Other Financing Sources (Uses) Transfers from Other Funds Transfers to Other Funds Bond Issuance Bond Premium Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)	33,567 - - - - 33,567	1,300,000 20,499 1,320,499	(33,567) - - (33,567)	33,567 (33,567) 1,300,000 20,499 1,320,499
Net Change in Fund Balances	(167,046)	1,274,304	(28,057)	1,079,201
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year	1,144,224	100,884	208,403	1,453,511
Fund Balance - End of Year	\$ 977,178	\$1,375,188	\$ 180,346	\$ 2,532,712

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

Total net changes in fund balances - Governmental Funds	\$ 1,079,201
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:	
Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the useful lives as depreciation expense.	
Capital Outlays \$ 161,290 Depreciation Expense (187,140)	(25,850)
Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Assets	(899)
Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. However, the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.	128,000
Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. These items consisted of the (increase)/decrease in:	
Early Retirement \$ (2,500) Compensated Absences (3,122)	(5,622)
Some revenues will not be collected for several months after the District's fiscal year end. These revenues are not considered "available" revenues in the governmental funds. These consist of:	
Net change in unavailable property taxes	11,763
Changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to net pension liability	520,203
Proceeeds from bond issuances are a long-term liability in the statement of net position. They are netted against repayments of long-term debt which reduce long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.	(1,300,000)
Premiums on bonds payable are a long-term liability in the statement of net position.	(20,499)
Change in net pension liability	(465,598)
Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due, and thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless	
of when it is due. Accrued interest increased by \$2,750.	(2,750)
Change in net position - Governmental Activities	\$ (82,051)

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION – FIDUCIARY FUND AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

ASSETS Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$ 116,644
TOTAL ASSETS	\$ 116,644
LIABILITIES Due to Student Groups	\$ 116,644
TOTAL LIABILITIES	\$ 116,644

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY

The Larimore Public School District operates the public schools in the City of Larimore, North Dakota. There is one elementary school and one junior/senior high school.

Reporting Entity - Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The District is financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a voting majority of an organization's governing body and (1) the District is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or (2) the District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization's resources. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District. Fiscal dependence can include the District's approval of the budget, issuance of debt, and/or levying of taxes for the organization.

Based on these criteria, there are no component units to be included within the District's reporting entity.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The District's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The District's significant accounting policies are described below.

Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements and fund financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements consist of a statement of net position and a statement of activities. These statements display information about the District as a whole.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental activities of the District at year-end.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the District's governmental activities. The statement identifies the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or drawing from the general revenues of the District. Direct expenses are expenses that are specifically associated with a service, program or department. The direct expenses are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges to recipients for goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted to meet the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues, which are not classified as program revenues, are presented as general revenues of the District.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the district-wide statements.

The Government-wide financial statements do not include fiduciary funds of component units that are fiduciary in nature.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Fund Financial Statements:

In order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance, the District segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds. A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The focus of the governmental fund financial statements is on major funds. Each major fund is presented as a separate column in the fund financial statements. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. The fiduciary fund is reported by type.

Fund Accounting

The District's funds consist of the following:

Governmental Funds:

Governmental funds are utilized to account for most of the District's governmental functions. The reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purpose for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which the obligation will be paid. Fund balance represents the difference between the governmental fund assets, deferred inflows of resources, and liabilities. The District's major governmental funds are as follows:

General Fund:

This fund is the general operating fund of the District. It accounts for all financial resources except those requiring to be accounted for in another fund.

Building Fund:

This fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for constructing and equipping new school facilities and renovation of existing facilities.

Non-major governmental funds are as follows:

Special Reserves:

Special Reserve funds are used to account for the proceeds of certain specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. Included in this category are the transactions for the special reserve funds.

Debt Service:

The Debt Service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payments of, general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Fiduciary Funds:

The District's only fiduciary fund is an agency fund. The agency fund is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does not involve measurement of results of operations. The District's agency fund consists of the following:

Student Activity Fund:

The fund accounts for the financial transactions related to the District's student activity programs.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Measurement Focus:

Government-wide Financial Statements:

The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. All assets, deferred inflows and outflows of resources, and liabilities associated with the operation of the District are included in the statement of net position.

Fund Financial Statements:

The governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus. Under this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance reports on the sources and uses of current financial resources.

The current financial resources measurement focus differs from the manner, which the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements are prepared. Due to the difference, the District's financial statements include a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide statements and the statements for government funds.

Basis of Accounting:

The basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

The District's governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when they become measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. The District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of its fiscal year. Expenditures are generally recorded as the related fund liability is incurred.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Revenues-Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions:

Exchange transactions are transactions in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenue for exchange transactions is recorded when the exchange takes place. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenue for exchange transactions is recorded when the resources are measurable and available.

Non-exchange transactions include transactions in which the District receives value without directly providing value in return. Non-exchange transactions include property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Under the accrual basis of accounting, property taxes are recorded as revenue in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recorded in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it is recorded in the financial records of the District.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: property taxes, intergovernmental revenues and investment income.

Unearned Revenues:

Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized in the financial statements before the revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility requirements are met are recorded as unearned revenues.

On the governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected during the availability period have been reported as unearned revenue.

Expenses and Expenditures:

Governmental funds accounting measurement focus is on decreases in net financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recorded in the fiscal year in which the related fund liability is incurred. Under the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recorded when incurred.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting:

The District's board follows the procedures established by North Dakota law for the budgetary process. The governing body of each School District, annually on or before the last day of July, must levy taxes. The governing body of the School District may amend its tax levy and budget for the current fiscal year on or before the tenth day of October of each year. Taxes for School District purposes must be based upon an itemized budget statement which must show the complete expenditure by program of the District for the current fiscal year and the sources of the revenue from which it is to be financed. The School Board, in levying taxes, is limited by the amount necessary to be raised for the purpose of meeting the appropriations included in the school budget of the current fiscal year, and the sum necessary to be provided as an interim fund, together with a tax sufficient in amount to pay the interest on the bonded debt of the District and to provide a sinking fund to pay and discharge the principal thereon at maturity.

The District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

- The administration prepares the District's budget. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. The budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
- 2. The Board reviews the budget, may make revisions, and adopts the final budget on or before August 15 of each year. The budget is then filed with the county auditor by August 25 of each year.
- 3. The budget may be amended during the year for any revenues and appropriations not anticipated at the time the budget was prepared, except no amendment changing the taxes levied can be made after October 10 of each year. The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

4. All appropriations lapse at the close of the District's fiscal year. The balance of the appropriation reverts back to each respective fund and is available for future appropriation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

The District considers highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Investments:

Investments are recorded at market value. North Dakota State statute authorizes school districts to invest their surplus funds in: a) Bonds, treasury bills and notes, or other securities that are a direct obligation of, or an obligation insured or guaranteed by, the treasury of the United States, or its agencies, instrumentality's, or organizations created by an act of Congress, b) Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, written by a financial institution in which the underlying securities for the agreement to repurchase are of the type listed above, c) Certificates of Deposit fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation of the state, d) Obligations of the state.

Fair Value Measurements

The Organization accounts for all assets and liabilities that are being measured and reported on a fair value basis in accordance with GAAP. GAAP defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosure about fair value measurements.

When fair value measurements are required, various data is used in determining those values. This statement requires that assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value must be classified and disclosed in the following levels based on the nature of the data used.

- Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
- Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by

market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

Capital Assets:

General capital assets result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the Government-wide Statement of Net Position but are not reported as assets in the Fund Financial Statements. All capital assets are recorded at cost (or estimated historical cost). The assets are updated for additions and retirements during the District's fiscal year. The District has established a capitalization threshold of \$750. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values at the date received. The District does not have any infrastructure assets. Improvements that significantly extend the useful life of the asset are also capitalized.

The District's land and construction in progress costs are capitalized but are not depreciated. All the remaining capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The District has established the following useful lives:

Buildings 50 years Furniture and Equipment 5 to 20 years

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Compensated Absences:

Vacation pay applies to full-time staff and recorded as an expenditure when paid. Sick leave accrues at a rate of \$10 per day up to a maximum of 80 days. Upon termination, an employee will be paid for any unused sick days. At June 30, 2016, the accrued severance liability was \$17,429.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations:

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the District's government wide financial statements. The District's governmental fund financials report only those obligations that will be paid from current financial resources.

Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the North Dakota Public Employee Retirement System (NDPERS) and Teachers' Fund for Retirement (TFFR) and additions to/deductions from NDPERS and TFFR's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by NDPERS and TFFR. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Fund Balance Classifications:

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in the classifications that disclose constraints for which amounts in those funds can be spent. These classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable – consists of amounts that are not in spendable form, such as inventory and prepaid items.

Restricted – consists of amounts related to externally imposed constraints established by creditors, grantors or contributors; or constraints imposed by state statutory provisions and administered by the North Dakota Department of Public Instruction.

Committed – consists of internally imposed constraints. These constraints are established by Resolution of the Board of Education.

Assigned – consists of internally imposed constraints. These constraints reflect the specific purpose for which it is the District's intended use. These constraints are established by the Board of Education and/or management.

Unassigned – is the residual classification for the general fund and also reflects negative residual amounts in other funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, the District's preference is to first use restricted resources, and then use unrestricted resources as they are needed.

When committed, assigned or unassigned resources are available for use, the District's preference is to use resources in the following order; 1) committed, 2) assigned and 3) unassigned.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources in the District's financial statements. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any long-term debt attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Restricted Net Position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Unrestricted Net Position is the net amount of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resource (expense/expenditure) until then. The District has one item reported on the statement of net position as cost sharing defined benefit pension plan, which represents actuarial differences within the NDPERS and TFFR pension plans as well as contributions to the plans made after the measurement date.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, *deferred inflows of resources*, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will *not* be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, *unavailable revenue – delinquent taxes*, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from one source, property taxes. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The District also has one item reported on the statement of net position *as cost sharing defined benefit pension plan*, which represents the actuarial differences within the NDPERS and TFFR pension plans.

Inter-fund Activity:

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are reported as inter-fund transfers. Inter-fund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not presented on the financial statements. Inter-fund activities within the district's governmental activities and its business-type activities, are eliminated in the statement of activities.

Extraordinary and Special Items:

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of the School Board and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence.

Estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Revenue Recognition - Property Taxes:

Taxes receivable consist of current and delinquent uncollected taxes at June 30, 2016.

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property January 1. A five percent reduction is allowed if paid by February 15. Penalty and interest are added March 15 if the first half-of-the taxes have not been paid. Additional penalties are added October 15, if not paid. Taxes are collected by the county and usually remitted monthly to the School District.

Property tax revenue in the governmental funds is recognized in compliance with National Council of Government Accounting (NCGA) Interpretation 3, "Revenue Recognition - Property Taxes". This interpretation states that property tax revenue is recorded when it becomes available. Available means when due, or past due and receivable within the current period and collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Such time thereafter shall not exceed 60 days. Property tax revenue is recorded as revenue in the year the tax is levied in the government - wide financial statements. Property taxes are limited by state laws. All School District tax levies are in compliance with state laws.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk:

As of June 30, 2016, the District's receivables consist of amounts due from other governmental units within the State of North Dakota.

NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

In accordance with North Dakota laws, the District maintains deposits at a depository authorized by the School Board. The depository is a member of the Federal Reserve System.

North Dakota laws require that all public deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond or collateral. The market value of collateral pledged must equal at least 110 percent of the deposits not covered by insurance or bonds.

Authorized collateral includes the legal investments described below, as well as certain first mortgage notes, and certain other state or local government obligations. North Dakota laws require that securities pledged as collateral be held in safekeeping by the District treasurer or in a financial institution other than that furnishing the collateral.

At June 30, 2016, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was \$2,189,020 and the bank balance was \$2,234,175. The entire bank balance was covered by Federal Depository Insurance or by collateral held by the District's Agent in the District's name in amounts sufficient to meet North Dakota legal requirements.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

As of June 30, 2016, the District had the following investments and maturities:

7.5 of Julie 50, 2010, the District had the	The that the following investments and maturities.			Fair Value Measurments Using					
	6/30/2016	Less than One Year	1-5 Years	6-10 Years	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)	Rating	Agency
Investments by Fair Value Level									
Cash & Cash Alternatives									
Client Interest			•	•		•	•		
Program	\$ 6,213	\$ 6,213	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 6,213	\$ -	\$ -		
Certificates of Deposit	450 400	100.000	E0 400		450 400			1-	1-
(various banks)	150,483	100,060	50,423	-	150,483	-	-	n/a	n/a
Debt Securities									
Anheuser-Busch Inbev Finance Inc.	05.004		05.004		05.004			A 3	Maadula
Bank of America	25,024	-	25,024	29,041	25,024	-	-	Baa1	Moody's
	29,041	-	-	29,041	29,041	-	-	ваат	Moody's
Berkshire Hathaway Finance Corp	27,805		27,805		27 905		_	Aa2	Moodylo
Costco Companies	27,803 25,602	-	27,803 25,602	-	27,805 25,602	-	-	Aaz A1	Moody's
DirecTV Holdings	,	-	25,602 26,558	-	•	-	-	BBB+	Moody's S&P
General Electric	26,558	-	20,336	-	26,558	-	-	DDD+	Sar
Capital Corporation	28,629	_	28,629		28,629		_	A1	Moody's
Goldman Sachs	20,029	-	20,029	-	20,029	-	-	Aı	woody S
Group, Inc.	27,808	_	27,808	_	27,808	_	-	А3	Moody's
JPMorgan Chase Co.	27,635	_	27,635	_	27,635	_	_	A3	Moody's
Nike, Inc.	25,767	_	27,000	25,767	25,767	_	_	A1	Moody's
Pepsico, Inc.	26,914	_	26,914	20,707	26,914	_	_	A1	Moody's
Verizon	20,014		20,014		20,014			, , ,	Woody 5
Communications, Inc.	25,223	_	_	25,223	25,223	_	-	Baa1	Moody's
Wells Fargo & Co.	25,523	_	25,523		25,523	_	-	A2	Moody's
Wells Fargo & Co.	25,869	-		25,869	25,869	-	-	A3	Moody's
Total Investments by Fair Value Level	\$504,094	\$106,273	\$291,921	\$ 105,900	\$ 504,094	\$ -	\$ -		,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities.

Credit Risk

The District may also invest idle funds as authorized by North Dakota laws, as follows:

- a. Bonds, treasury bills and notes, or other securities that are a direct obligation of, or an obligation insured or guaranteed by the treasury of the United States, or its agencies, instrumentalities, or organizations created by an act of Congress.
- b. Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, written by a financial institution in which the underlying securities for the agreement to repurchase are of the type listed above.
- c. Certificates of Deposit fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the state.
- d. Obligations of the state.

Interest Rate Risk

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one issuer.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

The investments are not subject to the credit risk classifications as noted in paragraph 9 of GASB Statement 40.

During the current year, the District invested idle funds of \$477,000 in publicly traded securities with maturity dates exceeding 270 days. As a result, the District is not in compliance with North Dakota Century Code Section 21-06-07.

NOTE 4 CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in the general fixed assets account group during the year:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Governmental Activities	Balance July 1, 2015	Additions	Disposals	Balance June 30, 2016
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated Land Total	\$ 847,707 847,707	\$ - -	\$ -	\$ 847,707 847,707
Capital Assets Being Depreciated Buildings Furniture & Equipment Total	1,688,260 2,241,838 3,930,098	161,290 161,290	(119,140) (119,140)	1,688,260 2,283,988 3,972,248
Less Accumulated Depreciation Buildings Furniture & Equipment Total	972,713 1,274,967 2,247,680	17,832 169,308 187,140	(118,241) (118,241)	990,545 1,326,034 2,316,579
Net Capital Assets Being Depreciated	1,682,418	(25,850)	(899)	1,655,669
Net Capital Assets for Governmental Activities	\$ 2,530,125	\$ (25,850)	\$ (899)	\$ 2,503,376

In the governmental activities section of the Statement of Activities, depreciation expense was charged to the following governmental functions:

	<u>De</u>	<u>preciation</u>	<u> </u>	<u>Additions</u>
Transportation	\$	48,929	\$	48,747
Regular Instruction		138,211		112,543
	\$	187,140	\$	161,290

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 5 LONG-TERM DEBT

A summary of long-term debt is as follows:

Title	Interest Rate	Original Maturity	Balance 6/30/2015 As Restated		6/30/2015		Additions	Additions Reductions		Balance 6/30/2016		Due within One Year	
School Building Bonds of 2011	2.50%	03-15-2017	\$	148,000	\$ -	\$	73,000	\$	75,000	\$	75,000		
School Building Bonds of 2012	1.25%	08-01-2018		225,000	-		55,000		170,000		55,000		
School Building Bonds of 2016	2.00-3.00%	08-01-2035		-	1,300,000		-		1,300,000		55,000		
Bond Premium				-	20,499		-		20,499		1,079		
Early Retirement				39,000	22,000		19,500		41,500		26,000		
Compensated Absences				14,307	3,122		-		17,429		-		
Net Pension Liability			4	1,112,611	1,787,841		1,322,243		4,578,209				
			\$ 4	1,538,918	\$ 3,133,462	\$	1,469,743	\$	6,202,637	\$	212,079		

Compensated absences and early retirement are generally liquidated by the general fund.

Interest expense was \$26,445 for the year ended June 30, 2016.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

	Fiscal Year Ending June 30	F	Principal	lr	nterest		Total
School Building Bonds of 2012							
	2017 2018	\$	55,000 55,000	\$	1,781 1,094	\$	56,781 56,094
	2019	\$	60,000 170,000	\$	375 3,250	\$	60,375 173,250
		Ψ	170,000	Ψ	0,230	Ψ_	170,200
School Building	Fiscal Year Ending June 30	F	Principal	lr	nterest		Total
Bonds of 2011	2017	\$	75,000 75,000	\$ \$	1,875 1,875	\$	76,875 76,875

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

	Fiscal Year Ending June 30	F	Principal		Interest	Total
School Building Bonds of 2016				'		
	2017	\$	45,000	\$	22,000	\$ 67,000
	2018		45,000		32,550	77,550
	2019		60,000		31,650	91,650
	2020		60,000		30,600	90,600
	2021		60,000		29,400	89,400
	2022-2026		330,000		128,200	458,200
	2027-2031		370,000		88,600	458,600
	2032-2036		330,000		31,200	361,200
		\$	1,300,000	\$	394,200	\$ 1,694,200

At June 30, 2016, rental commitments under operating leases were not significant.

NOTE 6 FUND BALANCE

A. Classifications

At June 30, 2016, a summary of the governmental fund balance classifications is as follows:

	Debt Service Fund		Special Reserve Fund		Building Fund		Total		
Restricted for: Debt Service Special Reserve	\$	149,991 -	\$	- 30,355	\$	- -	\$	149,991 30,355	
Building		-		-	1,3	375,188		1,375,188	
Total Restricted	\$	149,991	\$	30,355	\$ 1,3	375,188	\$	1,555,534	

Restricted fund balances reflect resources restricted for statutorily defined purposes not accounted for in a separate fund. At June 30, 2016, there were the following accounts:

Restricted for Debt Service:

This account represents funds held by the School District available to service long-term debt.

Restricted for Special Reserve:

This account represents funds, which can be used whenever collections from taxes levied for the current budget, are insufficient to meet the requirements of such budget.

Restricted for Building:

This account represents funds held by the School District available to pay for Building projects.

B. Minimum Fund Balance Policy

The Board of Education has not formally adopted a fund balance policy for the General Fund, however, the Board tries to maintain a fund balance of not less than 10% of the General Fund's current annual operating expenditure budget.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 7 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS - STATEWIDE

Substantially, all employees of the District are required by state law to belong to pension plans administered by Teacher's Fund for Retirement (TFFR) or the North Dakota Public Employee Retirement System (NDPERS), both of which are administered on a statewide basis.

Disclosures relating to these plans follow:

North Dakota Teacher's Fund For Retirement

The following brief description of TFFR is provided for general information purposes only. Participants should refer to NDCC Chapter 15-39.1 for more complete information.

TFFR is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan covering all North Dakota public teachers and certain other teachers who meet various membership requirements. TFFR provides for pension, death and disability benefits. The cost to administer the TFFR plan is financed by investment income and contributions.

Responsibility for administration of the TFFR benefits program is assigned to a seven-member Board of Trustees (Board). The Board consists of the State Treasurer, the Superintendent of Public Instruction, and five members appointed by the Governor. The appointed members serve five-year terms which end on June 30 of alternate years. The appointed Board members must include two active teachers, one active school administrator, and two retired members. The TFFR Board submits any necessary or desirable changes in statutes relating to the administration of the fund, including benefit terms, to the Legislative Assembly for consideration. The Legislative Assembly has final authority for changes to benefit terms and contribution rates.

Pension Benefits

For purposes of determining pension benefits, members are classified within one of three categories. Tier 1 grandfathered and Tier 1 non-grandfathered members are those with service credit on file as of July 1, 2008. Tier 2 members are those newly employed and returning refunded members on or after July 1, 2008.

Tier 1 Grandfathered

A Tier 1 grandfathered member is entitled to receive unreduced benefits when three or more years of credited service as a teacher in North Dakota have accumulated, the member is no longer employed as a teacher and the member has reached age 65, or the sum of age and years of service credit equals or exceeds 85. TFFR permits early retirement from ages 55 to 64, with benefits actuarially reduced by 6% per year for every year the member's retirement age is less than 65 years or the date as of which age plus service equal 85. In either case, benefits may not exceed the maximum benefits specified in Section 415 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Pension benefits paid by TFFR are determined by NDCC Section 15-39.1-10. Monthly benefits under TFFR are equal to the three highest annual salaries earned divided by 36 months and multiplied by 2.00% times the number of service credits earned. Retirees may elect payment of benefits in the form of a single life annuity, 100% or 50% joint and survivor annuity, ten or twenty-year term certain annuity, partial lump-sum option or level income with Social Security benefits. Members may also qualify for benefits calculated under other formulas.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Tier 1 Non-grandfathered

A Tier 1 non-grandfathered member is entitled to receive unreduced benefits when three or more years of credited service as a teacher in North Dakota have accumulated, the member is no longer employed as a teacher and the member has reached age 65, or has reached age 60 and the sum of age and years of service credit equals or exceeds 90. TFFR permits early retirement from ages 55 to 64, with benefits actuarially reduced by 8% per year from the earlier of age 60/Rule of 90 or age 65. In either case, benefits may not exceed the maximum benefits specified in Section 415 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Pension benefits paid by TFFR are determined by NDCC Section 15-39.1-10. Monthly benefits under TFFR are equal to the three highest annual salaries earned divided by 36 months and multiplied by 2.00% times the number of service credits earned. Retirees may elect payment of benefits in the form of a single life annuity, 100% or 50% joint and survivor annuity, ten or twenty-year term certain annuity, partial lump-sum option or level income with Social Security benefits. Members may also qualify for benefits calculated under other formulas.

Tier 2

A Tier 2 member is entitled to receive unreduced benefits when five or more years of credited service as a teacher in North Dakota have accumulated, the member is no longer employed as a teacher and the member has reached age 65, or has reached age 60 and the sum of age and years of service credit equals or exceeds 90. TFFR permits early retirement from ages 55 to 64, with benefits actuarially reduced by 8% per year from the earlier of age 60/Rule of 90 or age 65. In either case, benefits may not exceed the maximum benefits specified in Section 415 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Pension benefits paid by TFFR are determined by NDCC Section 15-39.1-10. Monthly benefits under TFFR are equal to the five highest annual salaries earned divided by 60 months and multiplied by 2.00% times the number of service credits earned. Retirees may elect payment of benefits in the form of a single life annuity, 100% or 50% joint and survivor annuity, ten or twenty-year term certain annuity, partial lump-sum option or level income with Social Security benefits. Members may also qualify for benefits calculated under other formulas.

Death and Disability Benefits

Death benefits may be paid to a member's designated beneficiary. If a member's death occurs before retirement, the benefit options available are determined by the member's vesting status prior to death. If a member's death occurs after retirement, the death benefit received by the beneficiary (if any) is based on the retirement plan the member selected at retirement.

An active member is eligible to receive disability benefits when: (a) a total disability lasting 12 months or more does not allow the continuation of teaching, (b) the member has accumulated five years of credited service in North Dakota, and (c) the Board of Trustees of TFFR has determined eligibility based upon medical evidence. The amount of the disability benefit is computed by the retirement formula in NDCC Section 15-39.1-10 without consideration of age and uses the member's actual years of credited service. There is no actuarial reduction for reason of disability retirement.

Contributions

Member and employer contributions paid to TFFR are set by NDCC Section 15-39.1-09. Every eligible teacher in the State of North Dakota is required to be a member of TFFR and is assessed at a rate of 11.75% of salary as defined by NDCC Section 15-39.1-04. Every governmental body employing a teacher must also pay into TFFR a sum equal to 12.75% of the teacher's salary. Member and employer contributions will be reduced to 7.75% each when the fund reaches 100% funded ratio on an actuarial basis.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

A vested member who terminates covered employment may elect a refund of contributions paid plus 6% interest or defer payment until eligible for pension benefits. A non-vested member who terminates covered employment must claim a refund of contributions paid before age 70½. Refunded members forfeit all service credits under TFFR. These service credits may be repurchased upon return to covered employment under certain circumstances, as defined by the NDCC.

Pension Costs

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability of \$4,139,362 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of July 1, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Employer's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the Employer's share of covered payroll in the pension plan relative to the covered payroll of all participating TFFR employers. At July 1, 2015, the Employer's proportion was 0.316507 percent which was a decrease of 0.040 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the Employer recognized pension expense of \$208,380. At June 30, 2016, the Employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

	Deferred Outflows of Resources	Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual		
economic experience	\$ 27,126	\$ -
Changes in actuarial assumptions	464,790	-
Difference between projected and actual		
investment earnings	-	46,678
Changes in proportion	-	397,318
Contributions paid to TFFR subsequent to the		
measurement date	268,763	-
Total	\$ 760,679	\$ 443,996

\$268,763 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2017.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30:	Pension Expense Amount
2017	\$ (18,746)
2018	(18,746)
2019	(18,746)
2020	75,442
2021	16,470
Thereafter	12,246

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.75%

Salary increases 4.25% to 14.50%, varying by service,

including inflation and productivity

Investment rate of return 7.75%, net of investment expenses

Cost-of-living adjustments None

For active and inactive members, mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table, projected generationally using Scale MP-2014. For healthy retirees, mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table set back one year, multiplied by 50% for ages under 75 and grading up to 100% by age 80, projected generationally using Scale MP-2014. For disabled retirees, mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table set forward four years.

The actuarial assumptions used were based on the results of an actuarial experience study dated April 30, 2015. They are the same as the assumptions used in the July 1, 2015, funding actuarial valuation for TFFR.

As a result of the April 30, 2015 actuarial experience study, the TFFR Board adopted several assumption changes, including the following:

- Investment return assumption lowered from 8% to 7.75%.
- Inflation assumption lowered from 3% to 2.75%.
- Total salary scale rates lowered by 0.25% due to lower inflation.
- Added explicit administrative expense assumption, equal to prior year administrative expense plus inflation.
- Rates of turnover and retirement were changed to better reflect anticipated future experience.
- Updated mortality assumption to the RP-2014 mortality tables with generational improvement.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Fund's target asset allocation are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class	Target Allocation	Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return
Global Equities	57.00%	7.53%
Global Fixed Income	22.00%	1.28%
Global Real Assets	20.00%	5.38%
Cash Equivalents	1.00%	0.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75% percent as of June 30, 2015. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that member and employer contributions will be made at rates equal to those based on the July 1, 2015, Actuarial Valuation Report. For this purpose, only employer contributions that are intended to fund benefits of current plan members and their beneficiaries are included. Projected employer contributions that are intended to fund the service costs of future plan members and their beneficiaries, as well as projected contributions from future plan

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

members, are not included. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan members as of June 30, 2015. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2015. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability changed from 8% to 7.75% based on the investment return assumption change as a result of the April 30, 2015 actuarial experience study.

Pension Liability Sensitivity

The following presents the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.75 percent, as well as what the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.75 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.75 percent) than the current rate:

	1% Decrease in Discount Rate	Discount Rate	1% Increase in Discount Rate 8.75%	
	6.75%	7.75%		
School's proportionate share of the				
TFFR net pension liability:	\$ 5,470,483	\$ 4,139,362	\$ 3,029,402	

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued TFFR financial report.

North Dakota Public Employees' Retirement System

The following brief description of NDPERS is provided for general information purposes only. Participants should refer to NDCC Chapter 54-52 for more complete information.

NDPERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that covers substantially all employees of the State of North Dakota, its agencies and various participating political subdivisions. NDPERS provides for pension, death and disability benefits. The cost to administer the plan is financed through the contributions and investment earnings of the plan.

Responsibility for administration of the NDPERS defined benefit pension plan is assigned to a Board comprised of seven members. The Board consists of a Chairman, who is appointed by the Governor; one member appointed by the Attorney General; one member appointed by the State Health Officer; three members elected by the active membership of the NDPERS system; and one member elected by the retired public employees. Effective July 1, 2015, the board was expanded to include two members of the legislative assembly appointed by the chairman of the legislative management.

Pension Benefits

Benefits are set by statute. NDPERS has no provisions or policies with respect to automatic and ad hoc post-retirement benefit increases. Member of the Main System are entitled to unreduced monthly pension benefits beginning when the sum of age and years of credited service equal or exceed 85 (Rule of 85), or at normal retirement age (65). For members hired on or after January 1, 2016, the Rule of 85 will be replaced with the Rule of 90 with a minimum age of 60. The monthly pension benefit is equal to 2.00% of their average monthly salary, using the highest 36 months out of the last 180 months of service, for each year of service. The plan permits early retirement at ages 55-64 with three or more years of service.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Members may elect to receive the pension benefits in the form of a single life, joint and survivor, term-certain annuity, or partial lump sum with ongoing annuity. Members may elect to receive the value of their accumulated contributions, plus interest, as a lump sum distribution upon retirement or termination, or they may elect to receive their benefits in the form of an annuity. For each member electing an annuity, total payment will not be less than the members' accumulated contributions plus interest.

Death and Disability Benefits

Death and disability benefits are set by statute. If an active member dies with less than three years of service for the Main System, a death benefit equal to the value of the member's accumulated contributions, plus interest, is paid to the member's beneficiary. If the member has earned more than three years of credited service for the Main System, the surviving spouse will be entitled to a single payment refund, life-time monthly payments in an amount equal to 50% of the member's accrued normal retirement benefit, or monthly payments in an amount equal to the member's accrued 100% Joint and Survivor retirement benefit if the member had reached normal retirement age prior to date of death. If the surviving spouse dies before the member's accumulated pension benefits are paid, the balance will be payable to the surviving spouse's designated beneficiary.

Eligible members who become totally disabled after a minimum of 180 days of service, receive monthly disability benefits equal to 25% of their final average salary with a minimum benefit of \$100. To qualify under this section, the member has to become disabled during the period of eligible employment and apply for benefits within one year of termination. The definition for disabled is set by the NDPERS in the North Dakota Administrative Code.

Refunds of Member Account Balance

Upon termination, if a member of the Main System is not vested (is not 65 or does not have three years of service), they will receive the accumulated member contributions and vested employer contributions, plus interest, or may elect to receive this amount at a later date. If the member has vested, they have the option of applying for a refund or can remain as a terminated vested participant. If a member terminated and withdrew their accumulated member contribution and is subsequently reemployed, they have the option of repurchasing their previous service.

Member and Employer Contributions

Member and employer contributions paid to NDPERS are set by statute and are established as a percent of covered compensation. Member contribution rates are 7% and employer contribution rates are 7.12% of covered compensation.

The member's account balance includes the vested employer contributions equal to the member's contributions to an eligible deferred compensation plan. The minimum member contribution is \$25 and the maximum may not exceed the following:

1 to 12 months of service – Greater of one percent of monthly salary or \$25 13 to 25 months of service – Greater of two percent of monthly salary or \$25 25 to 36 months of service – Greater of three percent of monthly salary or \$25 Longer than 36 months of service – Greater of four percent of monthly salary or \$25

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability of \$438,847 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the District's share of covered payroll in the Main System pension plan relative to the covered payroll of all participating Main System employers. At June 30, 2015, the District's proportion was 0.064538 percent, which was an increase of 0.005134 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2014.

For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized pension expense of \$47,571. At June 30, 2016, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

	Deferred Outflows of Resources	Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual economic experience	\$ 12,732	\$ -
Difference between contribution and proportionate share contribution Changes in actuarial assumptions	31,555	2,975 39,099
Difference between projected and actual investment earnings	-	9,264
Contributions paid to NDPERS subsequent to the measurement date	48,132	-
Total	\$ 92,419	\$ 51,338

\$48,132 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2017.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30:	Pension Expense Amount
2017	\$ (6,144)
2018	(6,144)
2019	(6,144)
2020	12,999
2021	(1,618)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.50%

Salary increases 4.50% per annum

Investment rate of return 8.00%, net of investment expenses

Cost-of-living adjustments None

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

For active members, inactive members and healthy retirees, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table set back two years for males and three years for females, projected generationally using the SSA 2014 Intermediate Cost scale from 2014. For disabled retirees, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table set back one year for males (no setback for females) multiplied by 125%.

The actuarial assumptions used were based on the results of an actuarial experience study completed in 2015. They are the same as the assumptions used in the July 1, 2015, funding actuarial valuation for NDPERS.

As a result of the 2015 actuarial experience study, the NDPERS Board adopted several changes to the actuarial assumptions effective July 1, 2015. This includes changes to the mortality tables, disability incidence rates, retirement rates, administrative expenses, salary scale, and percent married assumption.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Fund's target asset allocation are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class	Target Allocation	Long-Term Expected Real Rate of Return
Domestic Equity	31.00%	6.90%
International Equity	21.00%	7.55%
Private Equity	5.00%	11.30%
Domestic Fixed Income	17.00%	1.52%
International Fixed Inc.	5.00%	0.45%
Global Real Assets	20.00%	5.38%
Cash Equivalents	1.00%	0.00%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8.00 percent as of June 30, 2015. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that member and employer contributions will be made at rates equal to those based on the July 1, 2015, Actuarial Valuation Report. For this purpose, only employer contributions that are intended to fund benefits of current plan members and their beneficiaries are included. Projected employer contributions that are intended to fund the service costs of future plan members and their beneficiaries, as well as projected contributions from future plan members, are not included. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan members as of June 30, 2015. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2015.

Sensitivity of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 8.00 percent, as well as what the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.00 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (9.00 percent) than the current rate:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

			1% Increase in Discount	
	1% Decrease in Discount Rate	Discount Rate	Rate	
	7.00%	8.00%	9.00%	
School's proportionate share of the				
NDPERS net pension liability:	\$ 672,950	\$ 438,847	\$ 247,309	

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued NDPERS financial report.

NOTE 8 RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

In 1986, state agencies and political subdivisions of the State of North Dakota joined together to form the North Dakota Insurance Reserve Fund (NDIRF), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for the state and over 2,000 political subdivisions. The District pays an annual premium to NDIRF for its general liability, auto, and inland marine insurance coverage. The coverage by NDIRF is limited to losses on one million dollars per occurrence.

The District also participates in the North Dakota Fire and Tornado Fund and the State Bonding Fund. The District pays an annual premium to the Fire and Tornado Fund to cover property damage to buildings and personal property. Replacement cost coverage is provided by estimating replacement cost in consultation with the Fire and Tornado Fund. The Fire and Tornado Fund is reinsured by a third party insurance carrier for losses in excess of one million dollars per occurrence during a 12-month period. The State Bonding Fund currently provides the District with blanket fidelity bond coverage in the amount of \$2,000,000 for its employees. The state Bonding Fund does not currently charge any premium for this coverage.

The District participates in the North Dakota Worker's Compensation Bureau and purchases commercial insurance for employee health and accident insurance.

Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 9 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures, which may be disallowed by the grantor, cannot be determined at this time although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 10 NON-MONETARY TRANSACTIONS

The District receives food commodities from the federal government to subsidize its hot lunch program. The market value of commodities received for the year ended June 30, 2016 was \$17,904.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 11 TRANSFERS

The transfers as of June 30, 2016 consist of the following:

Transfers In	Transfers out	ers out Am	
General Fund	Special Reserves	\$	33,567
		\$	33,567

The transfer was made for half of the special reserve fund levy as allowed by ND Century Code.

NOTE 12 NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 77, *Tax Abatement Disclosures*, Financial statements prepared by state and local governments in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles provide citizens and taxpayers, legislative and oversight bodies, municipal bond analysts, and others with information they need to evaluate the financial health of governments, make decisions, and assess accountability. This information is intended, among other things, to assist these users of financial statements in assessing (1) whether a government's current-year revenues were sufficient to pay for current-year services (known as interperiod equity), (2) whether a government complied with finance-related legal and contractual obligations, (3) where a government's financial resources come from and how it uses them, and (4) a government's financial position and economic condition and how they have changed over time. This Statement is effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2015. Earlier application is encouraged.

Management has not yet determined the effect these statements will have on the entity's financial statements.

NOTE 13 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No significant events occurred subsequent to the District's year end. Subsequent events have been evaluated through August 26, 2016, which is the date these financial statements were available to be issued.

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE OF THE GENERAL FUND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

	Budgeted	Amounts		
	Original	Final	Actual	Over (Under) Final Budget
REVENUES Local Property Tax Levies Other Local and County Revenues Revenue From State Sources Revenue From Federal Sources Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Investments Interest	\$ 1,160,692 196,300 3,517,495 264,371 - 13,000	\$ 1,160,692 196,300 3,517,495 264,371 - 13,000	\$ 1,134,161 220,732 3,516,465 275,531 7,907 15,187	\$ (26,531) 24,432 (1,030) 11,160 7,907 2,187
TOTAL REVENUES	5,151,858	5,151,858	5,169,983	18,125
EXPENDITURES				
Business Support Services and Technology Instructional Support Services Administration Operations and Maintenance Transportation Regular Instruction Special Education Vocational Education Extra-Curricular Activities Food Services Capital Outlay	315,179 95,004 132,370 497,922 240,717 2,601,121 741,119 194,237 231,196 218,636	315,179 95,004 132,370 497,922 240,717 2,601,121 741,119 194,237 231,196 218,636	313,044 94,585 146,547 499,383 185,633 2,513,407 773,302 192,841 248,805 241,759 161,290	(2,135) (419) 14,177 1,461 (55,084) (87,714) 32,183 (1,396) 17,609 23,123 161,290
TOTAL EXPENDITURES	5,267,501	5,267,501	5,370,596	103,095
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures Net Change in Fund Balances	(115,643)	(115,643) (115,643)	(200,613)	(84,970) (84,970)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Transfers In TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)	<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>	33,567 33,567	33,567 33,567
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures Fund Balances - Beginning	(115,643) 1,144,224	(115,643) 1,144,224	(167,046) 1,144,224	(51,403)
Fund Balances - Ending	\$ 1,028,581	\$ 1,028,581	\$ 977,178	\$ (51,403)

NOTE TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The District's Board follows the procedures established by North Dakota law for the budgetary process. The governing body of each School District, annually on or before the last day of July must levy taxes. The governing body of the School District may amend its tax levy and budget for the current fiscal year on or before the tenth day of October of each year. Taxes for School District purposes must be based upon an itemized budget statement which must show the complete expenditure by program of the District for the current fiscal year and the sources of the revenue from which it is to be financed. The School Board, in levying taxes, is limited by the amount necessary to be raised for the purpose of meeting the appropriations included in the school budget of the current fiscal year, and the sum necessary to be provided as an interim fund, together with a tax sufficient in amount to pay the interest on the bonded debt of the District and to provide a sinking fund to pay and discharge the principal thereon at maturity. During the current year, actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures by \$103,095.

The District follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

- 1. The administration prepares the District's budget. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. The budget is prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
- 2. The Board reviews the budget, may make revisions, and adopts the final budget on or before August 15th of each year. The budget is then filed with the county auditor by August 25th of each year.
- 3. The budget may be amended during the year for any revenues and appropriations not anticipated at the time the budget was prepared, except no amendment changing the taxes levied can be made after October 10th of each year. The budget amounts shown in the financial statements are the final authorized amounts.
- 4. All appropriations lapse at the close of the District's fiscal year. The balance of the appropriation reverts back to each respective fund and is available for future appropriation.

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE TFFR AND NDPERS PENSION PLANS LAST TEN YEARS

Teachers Fund for Retirement

			Con	tributions in							
Fiscal Year	S	tatutorily	Rel	ation to the					Contribution	ons as a	
Ended	Ended Required Statutorily		orily Required	ired Contribution			ict's Covered-	Percentage of Covered-			
June 30	Contribution Contributions Deficiency		Contributions		Contribution Contri		(Excess)	Emp	loyee Payroll	Employee	Payroll
2016	\$	268,763	\$	268,763	\$	-	\$	2,107,946		12.75%	
2015		248,224		248,224		-		1,946,851		12.75%	

North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System

Fiscal Year	St	atutorily		ributions in Ition to the					Contribution	ns as a
Ended June 30				Statutorily Required Contributions		Contribution Deficiency (Excess)		ct's Covered- oyee Payroll	Percentage of Employee	
		Illibulion	001	ILLIDULIOLIS	Deliciency	(LACC33)	шірі	Oyee i ayion	Lilipioyee	ayron
2016	\$	41,489	\$	41,489	\$	-	\$	582,705		7.12%
2015		46,519		46,519		_		563,187		8.26%

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 68 for its fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Information for prior years is not available.

SCHEDULE OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY LAST TEN YEARS

Teachers Fund for Retirement

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30	District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability (Asset)	Sha Per	t's Proportionate are of the Net asion Liability 'Asset) (a)		rict's Covered- ployee Payroll	Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of its Covered-employee Payroll	Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability
2016	0.3165%	\$	4,139,362	\$	1,946,851	212.62%	62.10%
2015	0.3565%		3,735,561		2,067,930	180.64%	66.60%
	Districtle	Diatria	t'a Dranastianata			Proportionate Share of the Net Pension	Dian Fiduciany Not
For the Fiscal	District's Proportion of the		t's Proportionate are of the Net			Liability (Asset) as a Percentage of its	Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
	•			Dist	iata Carrarad	•	•
Year Ended	Net Pension		nsion Liability		rict's Covered-	Covered-employee	of the Total Pension
June 30	Liability (Asset)	(Asset) (a)	Emp	oloyee Payroll	Payroll	Liability
2016	0.0645%	\$	438,847	\$	574,956	76.33%	77.15%
2015	0.0594%		377,050		500,404	75.35%	77.70%

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the measurement date of the collective net pension liability which is June 30 of the previous fiscal year.

The District implemented GASB Statement No. 68 for its fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Information for prior years is not available.

NOTE TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

NOTE 1 CHANGES OF ASSUMPTIONS

TFFR

Amounts reported in 2016 reflect actuarial assumption changes effective July 1, 2015 based on the results of an actuarial experience study completed in 2015.

- Investment return assumption lowered from 8% to 7.75%.
- Inflation assumption lowered from 3% to 2.75%.
- Total salary scale rates lowered by 0.25% due to lower inflation.
- Added explicit administrative expense assumption, equal to prior year administrative expense plus inflation.
- Rates of turnover and retirement were changed to better reflect anticipated future experience.
- Updated mortality assumption to the RP-2014 mortality tables with generational improvement.

NDPERS

Amounts reported in 2016 reflect actuarial assumption changes effective July 1, 2015 based on the results of an actuarial experience study completed in 2015. This includes changes to the mortality tables, disability incidence rates, retirement rates, administrative expenses, salary scale, and percent married assumption.

BALANCE SHEET – NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AS OF JUNE 30, 2016

	Special Reserve	Debt Service	Total Non-Major Gov't Funds
ASSETS Cash and Investments Taxes Receivable	\$30,130 2,153	\$149,001 5,979	\$ 179,131 8,132
TOTAL ASSETS	\$32,283	\$154,980	\$ 187,263
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES			
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES Unavailable Revenue - Delinquent Taxes	\$ 1,928	\$ 4,989	\$ 6,917
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES	1,928	4,989	6,917
FUND BALANCES Restricted	30,355	149,991	180,346
TOTAL FUND BALANCES	30,355	149,991	180,346
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES	\$32,283	\$ 154,980	\$ 187,263

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

	Special Reserves	Debt Service	Total Non-Major Governmental Funds
REVENUES Local Property Tax Levies	\$36,495	\$ 103,534	\$ 140,029
Interest	28	72	100
TOTAL REVENUES	36,523	103,606	140,129
EXPENDITURES Operations and Maintenance Debt Service:	-	450	450
Principal Retirement Interest and Fees on Long-Term Debt		128,000 6,169	128,000 6,169
TOTAL EXPENDITURES		134,619	134,619
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures	36,523	(31,013)	5,510
Other Financing Sources (Uses) Transfers to Other Funds	(33,567)	_	(33,567)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)	(33,567)		(33,567)
Net Changes in Fund Balances	2,956	(31,013)	(28,057)
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year	27,399	181,004	208,403
Fund Balance - End of Year	\$30,355	\$149,991	\$ 180,346



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Education Larimore Public School District No. 44 Larimore. North Dakota

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Larimore Public School District No. 44 as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated August 26, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Larimore Public School District No. 44's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Larimore Public School District No. 44's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Larimore Public School District No. 44's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as items 2016-001 and 2016-002 to be significant deficiencies.

Compliance And Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Larimore Public School District No. 44's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of non-compliance that is required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards* and is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as item 2016-003.

The District's Responses To Findings

The District's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The District's responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose Of This Report

The purpose of this report are solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C. GRAND FORKS. NORTH DAKOTA

August 26, 2016

Forady Martz

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2016-001 Finding

Criteria

To provide reasonable assurance that segregation of duties take place while also taking into account the size of the District.

Condition

The District has one employee who is responsible for all accounting functions involved. The employee handles all income monies, prepares the receipts documents, prepares the deposits, issues all checks and distributes them, receives the bank statements and does the reconciliations. The employee also records the receipts and disbursements to the journals and maintains the general ledger. Considering the size of the District, it is not feasible to obtain proper separation of duties and the degree of internal control is severely limited.

Cause

There is only one business manager and due to the District's size, they are unable to hire more staff.

Effect

Lack of segregation of duties leads to a limited degree of internal control.

Recommendation

The District should separate the duties when it becomes feasible.

Management's Response

The Superintendent reviews and signs off on the unopened bank statements. The Superintendent also reviews and signs off on all the bank reconciliations.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES - CONTINUED FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2016-002 Finding

Criteria

The District does not identify all journal entries required to maintain a general ledger and prepare full-disclosure financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

Condition

The District's auditors prepared the financial statements as of June 30, 2016. In addition, adjusting entries were proposed to bring the financial statements into compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). An appropriate system of internal controls requires that a District must make a determination that financial statements and the underlying general ledger accounts are properly stated in compliance with GAAP. This requires the District's personnel to maintain a working knowledge of current accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and required financial statement disclosures.

Cause

The District does not have the resources to prepare full accrual financial statements.

Effect

The Superintendent is aware of the deficiency and addresses it by reviewing and approving the adjusting journal entries and the completed statements prior to distribution to the end users.

Recommendation

For entities of the District's size, it generally is not practical to obtain the internal expertise needed to handle all aspects of the external financial reporting. The District should establish an internal control policy to document the annual review of the financial statements, disclosures and schedules.

Management's Response

The District will continue to have the auditor prepare the financial statements; however, the District has established an internal control policy to document the annual review of the financial statements.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES - CONTINUED FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016

2016-003 Finding

Criteria

The North Dakota Century Code Section 21-06-07 does not permit governments to invest idle funds in publicly traded securities with maturity dates exceeding 270 days.

Condition

The District has \$477,000 invested in publicly traded securities with maturity dates exceeding 270 days from purchase date.

Cause

The District had finalized investments before being aware of the North Dakota Century Code.

Effect

The District is not in compliance with the North Dakota Century Code Section 21-06-07.

Recommendation

We recommend that the District transfer the funds into investments allowed by the North Dakota Century Code Section 21-06-07.

Management's Response

We were not aware of the requirements in Century Code until after the investments had been finalized. By that time, it was too late to get out of them without a negative impact on the district. The accounts are being watched to make sure they perform as projected and any reinvested funds, or future investments, will be invested in line with Century Code. Until then, these will be allowed to mature and expire according to the plan.